PUBLIC PROTECTION AND SAFETY POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held at 7.00 pm on 28 June 2011

Present:

Councillor Douglas Auld (Chairman)
Councillor Kate Lymer (Vice-Chairman)
Councillors Harry Stranger, Peter Fortune, Kathy Bance,
John Canvin, Jane Beckley and Richard Scoates

Judith Cross, Cora Green and Dr Robert Hadley

Also Present:

Councillor Nicholas Bennett J.P. and Councillor Tim Stevens J.P.

STANDARD ITEMS

105 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NOTIFICATION OF ALTERNATE MEMBERS

Apologies were received from Councillor Norrie.

106 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

107 APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS FOR 2011/2012

The Committee considered formally re-appointing its non-voting Co-opted Members for the 2011/12 Council Year. It was proposed that the Co-opted Members who served on the Committee in 2010/11 are re-appointed, with the exception of the Bromley Youth Council where nominations had yet to be received.

RESOLVED that the Co-opted Members be appointed, in a non-voting capacity, as set out below:

Nominating Organisation	Co-opted Member
Bromley Neighbourhood Watch Association	Mr Clifford Longley
Bromley Federation of Residents Associations	Dr. Robert Hadley

Bromley Victim Support	Ms Cora Green
Bromley Community Engagement Forum	Judith Cross

108 QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING THE MEETING

There were no questions from Councillors or Members of the Public.

109 MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC PROTECTION AND SAFETY PDS COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 22ND MARCH and 4TH APRIL 2011

The Committee considered the minutes of the meeting of Public Protection and Safety PDS Committee held on 23rd March 2011.

The Committee also considered the minutes of the joint meeting of Public Protection and Safety PDS Committee and Adult and CommunityPDS Committee held on 4th April 2011.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 22ND March 2011 and the joint meeting with Adult and Community PDS Committee held on 4TH April 2011 be agreed.

110 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS

Report RES11050

Members considered matters arising from previous meetings.

RESOLVED that matters arising from previous meetings be noted.

111 BOROUGH COMMANDER UPDATE

The Borough Commander gave an update on police activity across the Borough. He outlined the outcome of the Safer Neighbourhoods Review, which proposed that Safer Neighbourhood Resources be used more flexibly to support other wards in the Borough. It also proposed that the reduction of crime and anti-social behaviour be made explicit objectives of Safer Neighbourhoods activity in addition to the priorities of the community which is led through Ward Panels.

In addition he reported on the savings that needed to be made across the Metropolitan Police Service and explained that in order to achieve these savings a number of notices of possible redundancy and early exits would be served. The control room at Bromley would cease and would be operated from the Control Room in Lambeth. Although there were cuts to front desks

across the region, as Bromley was staffed by a Private Funding Initiative there would be no changes.

Members asked if Police Officers were still being recruited. They were informed that 82 of Bromley's PSCO's had applied to become PCO's. Not all would be successful but it demonstrated that there was still active recruitment.

RESOLVED that the update be noted.

HOLDING THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER TO ACCOUNT

112 QUESTIONS TO THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND COUNCILLORS ATTENDING THE MEETING

Two oral questions had been received. As the questioners did not attend the meeting written responses would be provided.

The questions and answers are appended to these minutes.

113 PUBLIC PROTECTION AND SAFETY PORTFOLIO - PREVIOUS DECISIONS

The Committee noted decisions taken by the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio Holder since the Committee's last meeting on 4th April 2011.

RESOLVED that the decisions be noted.

A) FIRE RISK REDUCTION OFFICER PROPOSAL

Report ES11084

The Committee considered a report which set out proposals for the creation of the post of Fire Reduction Officer within the London Borough of Bromley. The aim of the project was to enhance partnership working and achieve a reduction in Dwelling Fires, Non-Domestic Building Fires and Rubbish Fires. It was proposed that funding be allocated from LAA monies to support the post for a two year period.

Andy Holcombe from the Fire Service attended the meeting and addressed the committee.

Members raised a number of concerns at the proposal. The need for Bromley's support had arisen from the savings that had to be addressed by the Fire Service and members highlighted that Bromley was also in a position of having to make savings. However members were reminded that the funding would come from LAA monies.

The Portfolio Holder and the Director suggested an approach that could warrant further investigation; there were currently 3 Safer Neighbourhood

Public Protection and Safety Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee 28 June 2011

Officers in Bromley and that the Fire Reduction role could become part of their duties.

The Director would need to clarify if this was possible and it would then have to be agreed by the Executive.

Members of the Committee agreed that this suggestion required further investigation; the report would be deferred and brought back to a future meeting.

RESOLVED that the this matter is deferred pending investigation by the Director of environmental Services into the possibility of the Fire Reduction role being incorporated into the duties of the Safer Neighbourhood Panel Officers. A report on the outcomes of these investigations would be brought back to the Public Protection and Safety Policy Development and Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 26th July 2011.

B) PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2010/11

Report ES11073

The Committee considered a report which set out the provisional final outturn position for 2010/11 for the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio, which showed a variance of £54k against the controllable budget of £4,676k.

It was noted that the dog control service was now incorporated into the main budget.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be recommended to endorse the 2010/11 provisional outturn position for the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio.

C) REVIEW OF CCTV AND GATEWAY REPORT FOR THE TENDER OF THE CCTV SERVICES

Report ES11085

The Committee considered a report outlining details of a review of the CCTV service, which gave a range of alternative options for future provision of the service, and proposed changes to the tender process for the CCTV service to support shared procurement processes with London Borough of Lewisham.

Members were pleased to note that Bromley's CCTV service cost considerably less than neighbouring boroughs and congratulated officers on this fact and on the excellent service provided.

Officers highlighted that that when CCTV footage was used in prosecutions the defendants usually pleaded guilty when faced with such irrefutable

evidence. Thereby creating financial savings for both the Police and the Courts.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be recommended to:

- 1) Note the options outlined in the report;
- 2) Endorse option 3 that the proposed procurement activity for the re-tendering of the CCTV maintenance and monitoring contracts in partnership with the London Borough of Lewisham, which is projected to lead to savings of £35k on the contract..

D) PORTFOLIO PLAN

Report ES11086

The Committee considered the final draft of the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio Plan for 2011/12.

The Portfolio Holder explained that whilst this plan had been written by his Predecessor he was entirely happy with its contents.

The Chairman noted that on a number of the plans and subsections comments were made on savings and he asked that in all cases savings should be taken into consideration.

RESOLVED that the Portfolio Holder be recommended to agree the Public Protection and Safety Portfolio Plan for 2011/12.

114 SCRUTINY OF THE AGENDA FOR THE MEETING OF SAFER BROMLEY PARTNERSHIP ON 30th JUNE 2011

Members considered the agenda for the meeting of the Safer Bromley Partnership on 30th June 2011.

RESOLVED that the agenda for the meeting of the Safer Bromley Partnership on 30th June 2011 be noted.

115 EHTS ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY - 6 MONTH UPDATE

Report ES11087

Members considered a report outlining activity undertaken by the Public Protection Division (and other relevant Divisions of the Environmental Services Department) during the period of 1st October 2010 to 31st March 2011 relating to enforcement under delegated powers, as well as annual performance against the 2010/2011 Portfolio Plan targets.

RESOLVED that:

- 1) The report be noted;
- 2) Further reports be provided to the Committee every six months around activity relating to the Portfolio Plan and enforcement under delegated powers

116 SCHEDULE OF VISITS

Members considered the schedule of visits for the Public Protection and Safety PDS Committee.

RESOLVED that the following visits be arranged by officers:

Police
Fire Service
Environmental Health
(i.e. Public health Nuisance, Food Safety and Environmental protection)
Drug treatment Centre
Noise detection
SLAM

117 WORK PROGRAMME

Report RES11049

The Committee considered its Work Programme for 2011/12. They noted the reports that would be included on the agenda for 26th July.

The Chairman asked Members to let himself or the Clerk know if they would like to see items added to the programme.

RESOLVED that the Work Programme for the Public Protection and Safety PDS Committee be approved.

Appendix A

The Meeting ended at 9.12 pm

Chairman

Minute Annex

Questions to the Portfolio Holder for Public Protection and Safety

28th June 2011

Question 1 from John Eveson, Vice Chair, Little Chislewick Residents' Association:

"Given there is much concern amongst residents about safety issues surrounding the closure of the tip facility in Cornwall Drive, could the Council please advise on the nature of the dust involved and whether it is/was toxic or represented a health hazard in any way."

Response:

The site in question is the SITEC skip lorry base and waste transfer station, in Cornwall Drive, St Mary Cray. This site is not within the jurisdiction of Bromley Council's Environmental Protection team as it is licensed by the Environment Agency, who also enforce all of the provisions of their license.

However, I understand from our contacts at the Environment Agency that SITEC has voluntarily closed the site at present to any further inputs of waste, in order to allow them to clear some of the waste material stored. This is necessary in order for them to comply with their EA permit conditions. I further understand that Sitec were fined £75k on 27 April 2011, for permit breaches over a 2 year period from 2008 to 2010.

A further enforcement Notice has also been served on the company to come into full compliance with their permit. The main breaches are for volumes of waste on site and the infrastructure i.e fencing and litter netting.

It has also been noted by the Agency Inspectors that the dust suppression issues that occurred in the summer months were to be addressed by the company; the company has now been instructed that the dust suppression system currently in place is not adequate to suppress the dust being produced.

With regard to the nature of the dust, this will not be hazardous in any way as the material accepted at the site and is only inert waste and household waste in the skips.

Question 2 from Colin Willetts Asst Sec LCRA

The Little Chislewick Residents Association have been informed that both CCTV locations in Cotmandene Crescent & St Mary Cray Station(Sayes Court Road) have not been working since late February 2011, could the Portfolio Holder confirm

- i) is this the case?,
- ii) the reason for the cameras not working?
- iii) when will they be up & running again?"

Response:

- i) None of the cameras within the Cray system are functioning at this time
- ii) The tower block known as Alkham Tower is being demolished by Affinity Sutton and as such the microwave transmitter at the top of the tower has to be removed. There is no other point within this area that can provide a vantage point that will enable this CCTV system to function and therefore the system is being decommissioned.
- iii) There are no current plans to replace this system.